MEETING NOTICE
TOWN OF BREWSTER

GOLF COMMISSION

Location: 2198 Main Street
Date: August 22, 2023
Time: 3:30 PM

7
/4-/// Sy ha:

P

o e S

%, FESRPORALG \*@
uy \\\\\\\“

O
””//;/.rinﬂu'liuﬁ\:\:\
Pursuant to Chapter 107 of the Acts of 2022, this meeting will be conducted in

person and via remote means, in accordance with applicable law. This means that members of
the public body may access this meeting in person, or via virtual means. In person attendance will
be at the meeting location listed above, and it is possible that any or all members of the public
body may attend remotely. No in-person attendance of members of the public will be permitted,
and public participation in any public hearing conducted during this meeting shall be by remote
means only. If the Town is unable to live broadcast this meeting, a record of the proceedings will
be provided on the Town website as soon as possible. The meeting may be viewed by: Live
broadcast (Brewster Government TV Channel 18), Livestream (livestream.brewster-ma.gov), or
Video recording (tv.brewster-ma.gov).

When required by law or allowed by the Chair, persons wishing to provide public comment or
otherwise participate in the meeting, may do so by accessing the meeting remotely, as noted

on our posted agenda.

Meetings may be joined by:
1. Phone:+1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 436 2866
Webinar ID: 881 4407 8985

Passcode: 049087
To request to speak: Press *9 and wait to be recognized.

2. Zoom Webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/88 144078985 2pwd=MOSK OnNsRIRQT2FzZEpkSFZDWUVO

Zz09
Passcode: 049087
To request to speak: Tap Zoom “Raise Hand” button, then wait to be recognized.

AGENDA

e (allto Order
e Declaration of a Quorum

Brpwsr Jay Packett

Director of Operations

Colin Walsh
Course Superintendent

Golf Commission

Andrea Johnson
Chair

John Kissida
Vice Chair

Rob David

Anne O’Connell

Jay Paggi

David Valcourt

The Captains Golf Course
1000 Freemans Way
Brewster, MA 02631
(508) 896-1716

www.CaptainsGolfCourse.com

e Discussion and possible vote on proposed revisions to Town Bylaw; Chapter 6; Article V; Sub-Sections

6.5-6.10 -Anne O’Connell and Dave Valcourt



Public Comment
Superintendent’s Report — Colin Walsh
Director’s Report — Jay Packett
e Course Operations Questions and Concerns
e Memorial Bench Request
e Possible change to Clock
Update Pump House Protection — Jay Paggi, John Kissida
Other Strategic Planning Updates {Commission)
State of the Captains ideas — Dave Valcourt
Volunteer Fair Information — Andrea Johnson
Questions and Comments from Associations and Liaisons
Review and approve minutes
e 7/11

Future Agenda Items and Meetings (9/12, 9/26)
Matters not anticipated by the Chair
Adjourn

Date Posted: Date Revised:

Received by Town Clerk:



H 4738

Chapter Egt?é;

of the Acts of 2022

THE COMMONWEALTH o F MASSACHUSETTS
In the One Hundred and Ninety-Second General Court
AN ACT ESTABLISHING A CHARTER FOR THE TOWN OF BREWSTER.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court
assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows:

SECTION 1. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary,
the following shall be the charter for the town of Brewster:

Brewster Town Charter

Preamble: We, the people of the town of Brewster, Massachusetts, in order

to reaffirm the customary and traditional 1liberties of the people with
respect to the conduct of our local government, adopt this charter with thei
expectation and intent that the charter will continue and enhance the town‘s[
strong traditions of active voter participation; ethical, transparent andi
responsive leadership; wise use of public resources; respect for all in the
community; and an engaged citizenry. We expect and intend that our government
will be welcoming and inclusive and will promote equality and respect for alll
people. i

CHAPTER 1 :

POWERS OF THE TOWN ‘
Section 1 Incorporation |

1-1-1 The present town of Brewster, within its corporate limits as

now established, shall continue to be a body politic and corporate under the

name, town of Brewster.
Section 2 Scope of Town Powers

1-2~1 The town shall possess and exercise all powers possible under

the constitution and laws of the commonwealth as fully and completely as
though those powers were expressly enumerated in this chapter.

Section 3 Form of Government

1-3-1 This charter provides for a select board-open town meeting-town
manager form of government.

Section 4 Construction of Charter

1-4-1 The powers of the town under this charter shall be construed

liberally in favor of the town, and the specific mention of particular powers




| whether to hold an annual fall town meeting shall not prohibit the select

H 4738

in the charter shall not be construed as limiting the gemeral powers of the
town as stated in section 1-2-1,
Section 5 Intergovernmental Relations

1-5-1 The town may exercise, consistent with the law, any of its

powers or perform any of its functions and may participate in the financing
thereof, jointly or in cooperation, by contract or otherwise, with any 1 or|
more civil divisions, subdivisions or agencies of the commonwealth, other
states or the United States government.

CHAPTER 2

TOWN MEETINGS AND ELECTIONS

Sedtion 1. Legislative Power

2~1-1 The legislative powers of the town shall be exercised by a town
meeting open to all registered voters of the town.

Section 2. Open Town Meeting

2-2-1 Business sessions of the annual town meeting shall be held on
the first Monday in May and may be continued on such additional days as may
be decided by the town meeting upon recommendation of the select board. There
shall also be a second business session of the annual town meeting, referred
to as the annual fall town meeting, held in the last 3 months of the calendar
year on a date to be determined by the select board, which meeting shall be
an annual town meeting for purposes of the General Laws; provided, however,
that the select board may, at its discretion, cancel the fall annual town

meeting not later than September 15 in any year, so long as no more than 5

citizen petitioned articles submitted pursuant to section 4 of this charter |
for inclusion on the warrant at the fall annual town meeting and notice of
the select board’s action with regard to such meeting shall be posted on the

town website and principal bulletin board. The select board's decision as to

board from calling for a special town meeting, from time to time, at its

discretion.

Section 3. Warrant

2-3-1

(a) Except for procedural matters, all subjects to be acted on by town
meeting shall be placed on warrants issued by the select board.

(b) The date of the closure of the warrant to petitioned articles shall
be set by general by-law.

2-3-2




H 4738

(a) In addition to any notice required by the General Laws, the select
board shall: (i) post the town meeting warrant at the locations listed in
subsection (b), town hall and at least 1 location in each precinct and (ii)
make available sufficient copies of the warrant at the town meeting for all
registered voters in attendance.

(b) The select board shall, at least 1 week prior to the meeting, post
the warrant for the town meeting on the town website and make the same
available at town hall, and as required by general by-law or select board
policy, at town facilities and other common locations throughout the town;
provided, however, that failure to timely post the warrant on the website or
to make such copies available no later tham 1 week prior to the date of the
town meeting shall not invalidate or otherwise affect the Ilegality or
validity of the actions taken at the town meeting.

Section 4. Citizen Petitions

2-4-1 Any 10 registered voters of the town may secure, by written
petition to the select board, the inclusion of an article for the warrant of
any duly scheduled annual town meeting and not less 100 registered voters may
secure the same for any duly scheduled special town meeting.

2-4-2 The select board may provide a pre-petition process whereby
petiticners may seek review of proposed petitions prior to submission.

Section 5. Quorum

2-5-1 The town meeting shall establish by gemeral by-law a gquorum
requirement for the opening of its business, but a smaller number than the I
established gquorum may adjourn immediately any meeting to a stated date, time |
and place as recommended by the select board; provided, however, that in the
event of a state of emergency declared by the governor to protect the public
health or safety, the quorum may be reduced in the manner set forth in
section 7 of chapter 92 of the acts of 2020.

Section 6. Presiding Officer

2-6-1 A moderator, who shall be a registered voter of the town, shall |
be elected for a 3-year term as provided in section 2-11-1. The moderator
shall preside over all sessions of the town meeting. The moderator shall
regulate the proceedings, decide questions of order and make public

declarations of all votes. The moderator shall have all of the powers and

| duties given to moderators pursuant to the Constitution of the Commonwealth
| 'and the General Laws and such additiomal powers and duties as may be

| authorized by the charter, by-law or other town meeting vote.




H 4738

2-6-2 The moderator shall appeoint a deputy wmoderator for a 1-year
term who shall serve as moderator, if the moderator is absent or has a
conflict.

2-6-3 If the office of moderator becomes vacant, the select board
shall appoint a registered voter of the town as acting moderator. The acting
moderator shall not be an elected town officer and shall serve as acting
moderator until the next scheduled election of town officers.

Section 7. Rules

2-7-1 Unless otherwise provided by general by-law, rules of procedure
for the town meeting shall be in accordance with "Town Meeting Time: A

Handbook of Parliamentary Law” published by the Massachusetts Moderators

Association.
Section 8. Clerk of the Meeting
2-8~1 The town clerk shall serve as the clerk of the town meeting. If

the town clexrk is absent, the assistant town clerk shall serve as town clerk
regardless of whether such assistant is a resident or registered voter of the
town.

Section 9. Report

2-9-1 A journal of the proceedings of the town meeting shall be keptI
as a permanent record in the town clerk’s office and the journal shall be a
public record.

Section 10. Elections

2-10-1 The annual election for the election of officers and such
matters as are by law determined by ballot shall be held on the third Tuesday
in May. If the annual election for the election of officers and such matters;
as are by law determined by ballot falls 1less than 2 weeks after the
scheduled beginning of the spring annual town meeting, then the annual
election shall be held on the fourth Tuesday in May; provided, however, that
the select board may delay the date of the annual election to another date in
the same fiscal year if the governor has declared a state of emergency to.
protect the public health or safety. If the governor has declared a state of |
emergency to protect the public health or safety, then the annual election
shall be held on the fourth Tuesday in May or any other Tuesday in May or

June as determined by the select board after consultation with the town

clerk.
Section 11. Elected Officers
o
2-11-1 The registered voters of the town of Brewster shall, in |

accordance with any applicable laws, general by-laws, votes of the town or




H 4738

intergovernmental agreement, elect the following position; provided, however,
that members of multiple-member bodies shall be elected for overlapping

terms:

(a} moderator for a 3-year term;

() select board of 5 members, each for a 3-year term;

(c) school committee of 5 members, each for a 3-year term;

(d) representatives to the Nauset Regional School District school
committee, as the regional school agreement shall provide;

{e) board of health of 5 members, each for a 3-year texm;

{(f) planning board of 7 members, each for a 4-year term;

(g) recreation commission of 5 members, each for a 3-year term;

{h) historic district committee of 5 members, of which 4 members shall
be elected and 1 member shall be appointed by the éelect board, each for a 3-
year term;

{i) housing authority of 5 members, of which 3 members shall be elected

and 2 members shall be appointed in accordance with the General Laws; and

(j) constable for a 3-year term; provided, however, that the authority
of the elected constable in the town of Brewster shall be limited to the
posting of the warrant for a town meeting or town election; provided further,i
that the person holding such position shall conform to any reasonable
regulations concerning such responsibilities as may, from time to time, be
proposed by the chief of police and approved by the select board.

Section 12. Recall of Elected Officers

2-12-1 (a)

Any holder of an elected office in the town may be recalled from that

office by the registered voters of the town as hereinafter provided, for
reasons including, but not limited to, neglect of duties, malfeasance,
misconduct or inability to perform official duties; provided, however, that
the question of whether the reasons stated for recall justify recall of a
particular officer shall be determined solely by the voters.

(b)

Any 25 registered voters of the town of Brewster may initiate a recall
petition by filing with the town clerk an affidavit containing the name of

the officer sought to be recalled, a statement of the grounds for recall and

specifying the lead petitioner. The town clerk shall thereupon make available
to the lead petitioner copies of petition blanks demanding such recall, |
printed copies of which the town clerk shall keep available. The blanks shall |

be issued by the town clerk under the town seal, and be dated and addressed



H 4738

to the select board. The blanks shall contain the names of all the persons to
whom they are issued, the name of the person whose recall is sought and the
grounds for such recall as stated in’ the affidavit and shall demand the
election of a successor to such office. A copy of the petition shall be
entered in a record book to be kept in the office of the town clerk. The
recall petition shall be returned and filed with the town clerk within 20
days after notification by the town clerk to the lead petitiomer that the
recall petitions are available and shall have been signed by at least 12
percent of the registered voters of the town as of the last regular municipal
election, who shall add to their signatures the street and number, if any, of
their residence. The town clerk shall within 1 working day of receipt submit
the petition to the registrars of voters in the town and the registrars
shall, within 5 working days, certify thereon the number of signatures which
are names of registered voters of the town.

(b)

If the petition shall be found and certified by the town clerk and board
of registrars to be sufficient, the town clerk shall submit the petition with
the town clerk's certificate to the select board within 3 working days and
the select board shall forthwith give written notice of the receipt of the
certificate to the officer sought to be recalled. If the officer does not
resign within 5 days thereafter, the select board shall order an election to
be held on a date fixed by it which shall be not less than 65 and not more
than 90 days after the date of the town clerk's certificate that a sufficient
petition has been filed; provided, however, that if any other town election
is to occur within 100 days after the date of certification, the select board
shall postpone submission of the question of recall to the date of such other
election. No person shall be subject to recall if their term of office
expires within 90 days of the certification. If a vacancy occurs in the
office after a recall election has been ordered, the election shall
nevertheless proceed as provided in this section. .

(c)

An officer sought to be recalled may be a candidate to succeed themself
and, unless the officer reguests otherwise in writing, the town clerk shall
place the officer’s name on the ballot without nomination. The nomination of
other candidates, the publication of the warrant for the recall election and
the conduct of the recall election shall all be in accordance with the
provisions of law relating to elections.

{d)




H 4738

The incumbent shall continue to perform the duties of the office until
the question of recall has been acted upon by the voters. If then re-elected,
the officer shall continue in office for the remainder of their unexpired
term subject to recall as before, except as provided in this charter. If not
re-elected, the officer shall be deemed removed and the successor shall sexve
the remainder of the unexpired term; provided, however, that if the successor
fails to qualify within 10 days after receiving notification of election, the
office shall be deemed vacant.

(e)

(1) Ballots used for recall shall submit the following propositions in
the order indicated:

For the recall of (name and title of officer).
Against the recall of (name and title of officer)

{(2) Under the propositions shall appear the word *“Candidates”, the
directions to the voters required by section 42 of chapter 54 of the General
Laws and, beneath the directions, the mnames of candidates nominated in
accordance with the laws relating toc elections. If a majority of the votes
cast upon the question of recall is in the affirmative, then the candidate
receiving the highest number of votes shall be declared elected. If a
majority of the votes on the guestion of recall is in the negative, then the
ballots for candidates shall not be counted.

(£)

No recall petition shall be filed against an officer within 90 days aftex

taking office, nor, in the case of an officer subjected to a recall electionf

and not recalled thereby, until at least 6 months after the election at which

their recall was submitted to the voters of the town.

(9)

No person who has been recalled from an office or who has resigned from

office following the filing of a recall petition shall be appointed to any
town office within 2 years after such recall or such resignation.

CHAPTER 3

THE SELECT BOARD

Section 1. Composition, Compensation and Vacancies

3-1-1 There shall be a select board consigting of 5 members elected
for 3-vear overlapping terms. The select board shall serve as the executive
branch of town government. The select board shall have all of the powers,

duties and responsibilities of a board of selectmen as provided in the




H 4738

General Laws and any regulations there under, special laws applicable to the
town of Brewster and any local laws and regulations.

3-1-2 A chair, vice-chair and clerk shall be elected by the select
board at the first meeting following each regular town election.

3-1-3 A guorum of the select board shall be 2 members.

3-1-4 Each member of the select board may receive an annual stipend

as set forth in the general by-laws, subject to appropriation by town|

meeting.
3-1-5 If a member of the select board dies, resigns, is comvicted of |

a felony while serving or ceases to be a registered voter of the town, the

resulting vacancy may be filled by special election in accordance with the

General Laws.
Section 2. General Powers and Responsibilities |
3-2-1 The select Dboard shall exercise the powers and duties

prescribed by the General Laws, this charter and the general by-laws. The

select board may delegate powers and duties to the town manager or to another
town board. The select board shall enforce the laws and orders of the town,
including this charter.

3-2-2 The select board shall be the primary policy making, planning

and goal-setting agency of the town; provided, however, that no individual

member of the board, nor a majority of them, shall at any time, attempt to |
become involved in the day-to-day administration of the affairs of the town.
The select board shall act only through the adoption of policy directives and
guidelines which are to be implemented by officers and employees appointed by
or under its authority.

3-2-3 The select board, following the development of the proposed
budget by the town manager, shall review the annual proposed operating and

capital budgets submitted by the department heads and shall make the main

motion under the budget article at the annual town meeting.

3-2-4 The select board shall protect the assets of the town.

3-2-5 The sgelect board shall approve all collective bargaining_
agreements of the town negotiated by the town manager, consistent with.
chapter 150E of the General Laws.

3-2~6 The select board shall, at least once annually, meet jointly
with the finance committee, the school committee, the Nauset Regional School
District school committee and the Cape Cod Regiomal Technical High School
District school committee, or their respective designees, for the purpose of

sharing information.




| designate to the town manager the publishing of an annual town report for

: capacity.

town manager, the fire chief, police chief and town counsel.

H 4738

3-2-7 The select board shall be the licensing authority of the town

and shall have the power to issue licenses, make all necessary rules and|

regulations regarding the issuance of licenses, attach conditions and
restrictions thereto as it deems to be in the public interest and enforce the
laws relating to all businesses for which it issues licenses; provided,
however, that the board may, at its discretion, delegate responsibility to
|

the town manager or a hoard created for such purposes for issuance and

enforcement of any licenses.

3-2-8 The select board shall ensure that the general by-laws are kept
current.
3-2-9 The select board shall be responsible to emnsure that the town

manager complies with the charter. |
3-2-10 The select board shall approve all personnel policies proposed

by the town manager in accordance with subparagraph (K} of paragraph 4-1-4.
Section 3. Written Records and Communication to the Town

3-3-1 Any goal, policy, plan or official act adopted by the select

board shall be in writing and included in its entirety in the minutes of the
meeting at which it was adopted. The town manager shall ensure that a file
containing a complete list of the select board’s current policies and goals

is posted on the town website for public reference. The select board shall |

each calendar year.

3-3-2 Before August 31 and after the annual town election, the select
board shall hold a meeting for the purpose of stating the board's goals for
the next fiscal year or years, hereinafter referred to as the annual goal
setting meeting.

Section 4. Powers of Appointment

3-4-1 The select board shall select and enter into a contract with a

town manager. If the town manager position becomes vacant for any reason, the |

select board shall designate a gualified person to sgerve in an acting

3-4-2 The select board shall appoint, following consultation with the

3-4-3 The select board shall appoint members of all multiple-member
bodies, except as otherwise provided in this charter.

3-4-4 The select board may appoint ad hoc committees as it deems
necessary or appropriate.

Section 5. Investigatory Powers




H 4738

3-5-1 The select board may investigate the alleged misconduct of the
town manager, any town board or any member of a town board. The select board
may direct the town manager to investigate: (i) the affairs of the town; (ii)
the conduct of any town department or town employee; and (iii) any claim
against the town.

3-5-2 Any alleged potentially criminal matter shall be referred to
the appropriate law enforcement agency.

Section 6. Limitations and Public Ceremonies

3-6-1 Unless specifically provided in the General Laws, a member of
the select board shall not hold any other positicn in town government,
whether appointed or elected, paid or unpaid, that is created by the select
board or town meeting; provided, however, that serving in an ex officio
capacity shall not be considered a separate position for purposes of this
paragraph. Service as a representative from the town to a governmental body
other than the town shall not be prohibited by this paragraph.

3-6-2 The select board, and individual members thereof, shall deal
with employees who are under the direction and supervision of the town
manager solely through the town manager, except when the select board is
conducting an investigation of the town manager under paragraph 3-5-1, in
which case the employees shall contact the select board chair. Neither the
select board nor its individual members shall give direct orders to any such
employee.

3-6-3 Except as otherwise specified in this chapter, the select board
shall be subject to the same rules as apply to all other town boards,
including that members have no authority in their individual capacities

except as delegated by majority vote of the select board.

3-6-4 The select board shall represent the teown for all ceremonial |

purposes.

Section 7. Code of Conduct

The select board shall adopt a policy establishing a code of conduct
applicable to all appointed and elected officials, which policy shall be
amended from time to time at the board’s discretion and any additional code
of conduct adopted by another board shall be no less restrictive. Any code of
conduct adopted by a board shall be posted in its office and on the town
website.

CHAPTER 4

TOWN MANAGEMENT

Section 1 Town wmanager

10




H 4738

4-1-1 .

The select board shall by majority vote of the entire select board
appoint a town manager. The method of selection shall be left to the
discretion of the select board so long as the method of selection ensures
orderly, nonpartisan acticn toward securing a competent and qualified pexrson
to £fill the position. The town manager shall be chosen solely upon the basis

of the individual’s administrative training, education, experience and

ability and need not, when appointed, be a resident of the town; provided,
|
however, that the town manager shall establish such residence within 12 I:

months following the effective date of appointment; provided further, that |

the select board may, by a 2/3 vote of the entire board, extend to a time
certain the time for establishing residence or waiving this reguirement.

4-1-2

The town manager shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the
select board within the amount appropriated by town meeting and according to

the town manager’s expertise, education and training. Any contract between

1
the select board and the town manager shall be made consistent with section

108N of chapter 41 of the General Laws.

4-1-3 Texrm and Removal

The town manager may be appointed for a definite term, but wmay be removed
at the discretion of the select board by majority vote of the entire select
board. The action of the select board in suspending or removing the town |
manager shall be final. It is the intention of this charter to invest all
authority and fix all responsibilities of such suspensicn or removal in the
select board.

4-1-4

The town manager shall be responsible to the select board for the proper
administration of the affairs of the town consistent with the General Laws
and this charter, and shall:

(B) appoint for a term of years or, at the town manager’s discretion,
for an unlimited period, all town employees, including civil service
positions, not otherwise addressed herein, but excluding employees of the
school department; provided, however, that the town manager shall:

(i) act upon recommendations from the police chief and the fire chief,
respectively, for appointment of employees of the ©police and fire

departments;

11




H 4738

(ii) consult with the appropriate department head or multiple-member
body for appointment of employees of other departments or multiple-member
bodies;

(B) supervise, discipline, suspend or remove all appointed department
heads and employees and organize and structure all town departments
accordingly, except as otherwise provided in section 3;

(C) administer and enforce the General Laws and special acts and all by-
laws and regulations established by the select board;

(D} coordinate activities of all town departments;

(E) attend all sessions of the town meeting and answer all gquestions
addressed to the town manager which are related to the warrant articles and
to matters under the general supervision of the town manager;

(F) keep the select board fully informed as to the needs of the town and
recommend to the select board for adoption such measures requiring action by
the select board or by the.town as the town manager deems necessary or
expedient;

(@) ensure that complete and full records of the financial and

administrative activity of the town are maintained and render reports to the |

select board as may be reguired;

({H) be responsible for the rental, use, maintenance, repair and the
development of a comprehensive maintenance program for all town facilities;

(I) =serve as the chief procurement officer for purposes of chapter 30B
of the General Laws and be responsible for the purchase of all supplies,
materials and eqguipment, approve the award and execute all such contracts;
provided, however, that any contract over $1,000,000, or such higher amount
as shall be approved by the select board from time to time, shall require
approval by the select board;

(J) develop and maintain a formal and complete inventory of all town-
owned real and personal property and equipment;

(K) propose personnel policies for approval by the select board under
section 3-2-10 and administer all persomnnel policies, practices, rules and
regulations, any compensation plan and any related matters for all municipal
employees and administer all collective bargaining agreements entered into by
the town;

(L) fix the compensation of all town employees and officers appointed by
the town manager within the limits established by appropriation and any

applicable compensation plan and collective bargaining agreements;

12




H 4738

(M) Dbe responsible for the negotiation of all contracts with town
employees regarding wages and other terms and c¢onditions of employment,
except employees of the school department. The town manager may, subject to
the approval of the select board, employ special counsel to assist in the
performance of these duties; provided, however, collective bargaining
agreements shall be subject to the approval of the select board in accordance
with chapter 150E of the General Laws;

(N) be responsible for the preparation and development of the financial
forecast, annual operating and capital budgets and S-year capital improvement
plan, consistent with policy guidance provided by the select board, and
prepare and submit to the select board and finance committee such budget and
plan, and be responsible for the administration of such budget and plan after
their adoption;

(O) keep the select board and the finance committee fully informed as
to the financial condition of the town and make recommendations to the select
boaxrd;

(P) investigate or inguire into the affairs of any town department or
office;

(Q) have full authority to act on behalf of the town during emergencies,
including the direction of town personnel, declaring states of emergency,
opening the emergency operations center and shelters and the emergency
expenditure of funds, and to delegate such responsibility by appointing an
emergency management director, who shall be a town employee duly trained in
public safety, and a deputy emergency management director to assist the
emergency management director and to assume the duties of the emergency
management director in the director’s absence;

(R) delegate, authorize or direct any subordinate or employee in the
town, including an assistant town manager, if any, and subject to funding
therefor, to exercise any power, duty or responsibility that the office of
town manager may exercise; provided, however, that all acts performed under
such delegation shall be deemed to be the acts of the town manager; and

(8) perform such other duties as necessary or as may be assigned by this
charter, by-law, town meeting vote or vote of the select board.

4-1-5

The town manager shall appoint as acting town manager a town employee who .
shall perform the duties of the town manager in the town manager’s absence;
provided, however, that if there is an assistant town manager serving at the

time of any such absgence, such person may function as the acting town

13




| implementation of such suspension. When the town manager intends to take
| action under clause (B) of subsection 4-1-4 of section 1 with respect to

subordinate members of the fire department, the town manager shall consult

| police department consistent with section 97A of chapter 41 of the General

H 4738

manager. In the event of long-term disability or absence exceeding 14 days,
or the resignation, termination or vacancy in the office of town manager, the
select board shall not later than 14 days thereafter, appoint an acting town

manager for the duration of any such disability or absence or until

appointment of a permanent town manager. No member of the select board shalli
serve as acting town manager. ;
|
1

Section 2. Town Counsel
4-2-1 The select board shall appoint a competent and duly qualified and|
licensed attorney practicing in the commonwealth to be the counsel for the
town. Town counsel shall receive such compensation for services as may be
fixed by the select board and shall hold office at the pleasure of the select
board. The town counsel shall be the legal adviser of all offices and
departments of the town and shall represent the town in all litigation and
other legal proceedings; provided however, that the select board may retain
special counsel at any time the sgelect board deems appropriate and necessary.
The town counsel shall review and concur or dissent upon all documents,I
contracts and legal instruments in which the town may have an interest. The
town counsel shall perform other duties prescribed by this charter, by by-law

or as directed by the select board. No employee, committee or board, elected

or appointed, other than the select board, shall contact or otherwise

interact with the town, labor or other special counsel in a manner

inconsistent with the policy relative to access to counsel established by the |

select board. This section shall mnot limit the school committee from |

retaining its own legal counsel.
Section 3. Fire, Police and Water Departments; Other Departments

4-3-1 Except as otherwise provided in this charter, there shall be a

fire department consistent with sections 42, 43 and 44 of chapter 48 of the
General Laws. The fire chief shall have responsibility for the day-to-day
supervision of firefighters and the fire department. The fire chief shall
have additional authority to place a firefighter on administrative leave with
pay, or discipline or suspend a firefighter, for a periocd of no more than 5

days and shall provide the town manager with written notification upon

with the fire chief before taking such action.

4-3-2 Except as otherwise provided in this charter, there shall be a

14




H 4738

Laws. The police chief shall have responsibility for the day-to-day
supervision of police officers and the police department. The police chief
shall have additiomal authority to place a police officer on administrative
leave with pay, or discipline or suspend a police officer, for a period of no
more than 5 days and shall provide the town manager with written notification
uporn implementation of such suspension. When the town manager intends to
takes action under clause (B} of subsection 4-1-4 of section 1 with respect
to subordinate members of the police department, the town manager shall
consult with the police chief before taking such action.

4-3-3

(a) There shall be a water department under the supervision of a water
superintendent. The department shall have all of the powers, rights and
duties to be exercised by a water commission under the General Laws and
special laws, except as othexrwise provided herein. The water superintendent
shall be responsible for the efficient exercise, performance and coordination
of the department. Any exercise by the department of the authority of water
commissioners with respect to acquisition or dispcsition of land shall be
approved by the select board prior to any such acquisition or disposition of
land. The superintendent shall report to the town manager as to the doings of
the office at such times as the town manager may require.

(b) The water superintendent shall supervise and direct the operations

and employees of the department in accordance with the town’s personnel by-

laws and any applicable collective bargaining agreements. The water

superintendent shall be especially qualified by education, training and
experience to perform the duties of the office and shall have such other
qualifications as may be required from time to time. While employed by the
town, the water superintendent shall not engage in a business or occupation
falling within the jurisdiction of the water department, unless approved in
advance by the town manager with the concurrence of the select board. Unless
specifically provided in the General Laws, the water superintendent shall not
hold any other position in town government, whether appointed or elected,
paid or unpaid, that is created by the select board or town meeting;

provided, however, that serving in an ex officio capacity shall mnot be

| considered a separate position for purposes of this subparagraph. Service as

a representative from the town to a governmental body other than the town
shall not be prohibited by this subparagraph. The water superintendent need

not be a resident of the town during their tenure.

15




H 4738

(<3} There shall be a water commission consisting of 3 members to be
appointed by the select board for alternai:ing, overlapping 3-year terms. The
commission shall be respomsible for setting water rates, making budget
recommendations and providing advice and support to the superintendent with
respect to other policy matters on which the commission may be consulted and
which falls within the jurisdiction of the water department. The water
commission shall recommend priorities and policies to govern the provision of
water in the town, and, with the concurrence of the water superintendent, may
adopt policies and regulations to carry out the same.

CHAPTER 5

TOWN BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES

Section 1. Appointed Boards and Committees

5-1-1

(a) In addition to any boards and committees specified in this charter,

boards and committees may be created by adoption of by-laws, by town meeting
vote or a vote of the select board. A 1list of any such boards and
committees, specifying the number of members, terms of office, if any, and
listing their respective charges, shall be maintained in the office of the
town clerk and, within 10 business days after the creation of the board or
committee, posted on the town website.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this charter or Gemeral Laws
to the contrary, any person appointed to a multiple-member body way be
removed by their respective appointing authority following written notice and
the opportunity for a public hearing; provided, however, that failure to
reappoint following the expiration of an appointed term shall not constitute
removal.

Section 2. Moderator Appointments

5-2-1

The moderator may appoint members of the boards, committees and
commissions established under this section or as may be authorized by by-law,
town meeting vote or regional school district agreement. Appointments made by
the moderator shall each be for a fixed term and such appointments shall not
be subject to review or confirmation by any other person or group.

5-2-2

{a) There shall be a finance committee which shall be consisting of 9

residents of the town who shall be appointed by the moderator, shall serve

| without pay and shall hold no other town office or employment; provided,

further, that each member shall servé for a 3-year term beginning on July 1

16




H 4738

and terminating on June 30 of the third year following appointment. Vacancies
on the committee shall be filled by the moderator for the remainder of the
unexpired term. A member of the finance committee shall not hold any other
position in town government, whether appointed or elected or paid or unpaid,
that is created by the select board or town meeting; provided, however, that
serving in an ex officio capacity shall not be considered a separate position
for purposes of this paragraph.

(B) The finance committee shall consider all the articles in any town
meeting warrant and report to the town meeting its recommendations by posting
the same on the town website and in any other mammer it deems appropriate.
Following the drawing up of the warrant for a town meeting, the select board
shall forthwith forward the warrant to the members of the finance committee.
The finance committee shall annually prepare for the annual town meeting a
comprehensive summary of the current condition of the town's finances.

(C) To carry out the finance committee’s duties, the finance committee
may investigate the books and accounts of any town department. The finance
committee and the individual members thereof shall deal with employees who

are under the direction and supervision of the town manager solely through

the town manager. Neither the finance committee nor its individual members |

shall give direct orders to any such employee.
Section 3. Alternate Members of Certain Multiple-Member bodies
5-3-1
The select board, following consultation with a committee, commission ox
board elected under clause (¢}, (e), (£f), (g) cr (h) of subsection 2-11-1 of
section 11 of chapter 2 may appoint not more than 2 alternate members to
serve for terms of 1 or 2 years. The chair of each committee, commission or
board to which alternate members have been appointed may designate an
alternate member to sit on the committee, commission or board in the case of
absence, inability to act or conflict of interest on the part of any member
of the committee, commission or board, or in the event of a vacancy. Any
vacancy arising in the alternate position shall be filled in the same manner
as the original appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.
5-3-2 Alternate Members of Appointed Boards
The appointing authority wmay appoint not more than 2 alternate
members to boards, committees or commizsions established pursuant to
paragraph (a) of subsection 5-1-1 of section 1 for terms of 1 or 2 years. The
chair of each board to which alternate members have been appointed may

deéignate an alternate member to sit on the board in the case of absence, to

17




H 4738 |
|
|

act or conflict of interest on the part of any member of the board, or in thei
event of a vacancy. BRny vacancies arising in the alternate position shall be
filled in the same manner as the original appointment for the remainder of
the unexpired texm.

Section 4. General Provisions Applicable to Multiple-Member Bodies

5-4~1

Except as otherwise provided in this charter, each multiple-member body
set forth herein or establisghed pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 5-1-1
of section 1 shall be organized and charged with, as applicable, the powers
and duties specified in any general or special law or in any by-law, town
meeting vote, vote of the select board or as otherwise provided herein.

5-4-2

Each multiple-member body shall elect a chair, vice chair and clerk, and

shall cause the select board and the town clerk to be notified of its
selection. Such elections shall be taken up at the first meeting after the

election Ffor all elected boards, at the first meeting after annual

appointments are made or at the first meeting of a new board or committee. |

All boards and committees created under this chapter or by by-law, shall make
a written annual report of their activities to the select board in accordance
with subsection 3-3-1 of section 3 of chapter 3.

5-4-3 Resignation

The resignation of any elected town officer under subsection 2-11-1 of

section 11 of chapter 2 or any appointed multiple-member body created by this

charter or by by-law under clause (a) of subsection 5-1-1 of section 1 shall

be deemed effective when - such resignation is filed with the town clerk or at
such later time as may‘be specified in the filed resignation.

5-4-4 Excessive Absences; Loss of Appointed Office

For the purpose of this charter, 3 consecutive absences from meetings of
an appointed member of a multiple-member body shall be considered a reason
for removal. Under such circumstances, the chair of the multiple-member body
may notify the appointing authority and the appointing authority may remove
the member pursuant to clause (b) of subsection 5-1-1 of section 1 and notify

the town clerk in writing that the position has been vacated.

Section 5 Cape Cod Regional Technical High School District School

Committee and Other Regional Entities
5-5-1 Members of the Cape Cod Regional Technical High School District

school committee shall be appointed or elected in accordance with the

regional school district agreement as it may be amended from time to time.

18




H 4738

5-5-2 Election or appointment to other regioﬁal entities shall be in
accordance with an applicable intermunicipal agreement for such purposes.

CHAPTER 6

FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

Section 1 Budget Schedule

6~1~1 Annually, before December 1, the town manager shall establish
and issue a budget schedule that shall set forth the calendar dates for
developing the annual budget for the next fiscal year.

6-1-2 Oon or before December 15, the town manager shall present a
financial forecast to the select board. Thereafter, the select board shall
set guidelines for the preparation of the annual budget.

6-1-3 On or before February 15, the town manager shall submit to the

| select board a proposed line item budget and accompanying message.

Section 2 Proposed Budget

6-2-1 The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all town
funds and activities, including details on debt and debt service, anticipated
income and proposed expenditures.

6-2-2 The budget message shall begin with a clear general summary of
its content and explain, in both fiscal terms and program objectives, the
proposed expenditures for each department and the projected tax rate.

Section 3 Budget Adoption

6-3-1 The town meeting shall adopt the annual operating budget, with
or without amendments, before the beginning of the fiscal year, except in the
event that the governor has declared a state of emergency to protect the
public health or safety and the town meeting cannot complete its business as
a result thereof,

Section 4 Capital Planning

6-4-1

The town manager shall prepare a 5-year capital improvement plan

identifying proposed capital outlays or acquisitions in excess of 510,000 or

| such other sum as shall be determined by the select board for any 1 project,

whether it be spent in 1 year or over several years. The town manager, in the
town manager’s sole discretion, may appoint a committee to assist the town
manager with preparation of the plan.

6-4-2

() The capital improvement plan shall include all town activities and

departments. Proposed capital expenditures for regional entities shall be

19




H 4738

consistent with the regional or intermunicipal agreement establishing such
entities.

(b) The capital improvement plan shall include a list, by department, of
all proposed capital improvements to be undertaken during the next 5 fiscal
years and shall include cost estimates, methods of financing and time
schedules. This information shall be revised and extended on an annual basis.

6-4-3

(a) The capital improvement plan shall be submitted to the select board
by February 1 of each year.

(b) The select board shall, after providing 7 days’ notice in the manner
required by section 20 of chapter 30A of the General Laws and applicable
regulations, heold a public hearing on the capital improvement plan. The
select board shall make the capital improvement plan available for public
inspection.

6-4-4

The select board shall prepare and submit to each annual town meeting a
summary of the capital improvement plan, identifying all proposed capital
expenditures for the next 5 years estimated to cost $100,000 or more, or such
other amount as the select board shall determine from time to time and which
shall include the fiscal year in which it is anticipated to be expended, the
amount and its anticipated source of funding.

Section 5. Annual Audit

6~5-1 At the close of each‘fiscal year and at such other times as may
be deemed necessary, an independent audit shall be undertaken of all accounts
of the town by a certified public accountant. The audit committee created by
by-law, if any, or in the absence thereof, the select board, shall soliecit a
firm or firms for such purposes. The certified public accountant so selected
shall have no personal interest, directly or indirectly, in the financial
affairs of the town or any of its offices. Upon completion of the audit, the
results shall be reviewed by the audit committee, if any, and by the select
board and the finance committee. The results, in summary form, shall be

placed on f£ile in the office of the town clerk and on the town website as a

| public record and shall be available in the public 1library for public

information.
CHAPTER 7
BY-LAWS AND CHARTER - ADOPTION, AMENDMENT AND PERIODIC REVIEW

Section 1. By-laws

20




H 4738

7-1-1 By-laws may be proposed by warrant article consistent with the
General Laws and this charter.

7-1-2 Adoption and amendment of by-laws shall be approved in
accordance with applicable General Laws.

7-1-3 The select board shall ensure that the by-laws are reviewed and

| prepared for any necessary revisions at least once every 10 years.

7-1-4 The town clerk shall codify and republish the by-laws from time
to time as may be reasonable and such by-laws shall also be posted on the
town website.

7-1-5 All special acts, by-laws, town meeting resolutions, and rules
and regulaticns of the town in force at the time this charter takes effect,
not inconsistent with this charter, shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 2 Charter

7-2-1 Amendments to the charter may be approved by any means
available pursuant to the Constitution of the Commonwealth and the General
Laws; provided, however, that if such amendments are to be acted upon by town
meeting in accordance with section 10 of chapter 43B of the General Laws, the
select board and finance committee shall present their recommendations to
town meeting for comsideration upon any such proposed amendment.

7-2-2 The select board shall appoint a committee of not less than 5
nor more than 9 members to review the charter at least once every 10 years,
such that review of the charter shall begin 5 years after the by-law review
provided for in section 7-1-3 and shall provide recommendations, if any, to a
subsequent town meeting with respect to such review.

SECTION 2. All town of Brewster by-laws, resolutions, rules and
regulations and votes of the town meeting in force at the time the charter
established pursuant to section 1 takes effect, that are not inconsistent
with this charter shall continue in full force and effect. If any provision
of the charter established in section 1 conflicts with any of the by-laws,
rules and regulations, orders or special acts or acceptances of laws of the
town, the charter provisions shall govern. A2ll town by-laws, rules and
regulations, orders and special acts of the town not superseded by the
charter established in section 1 shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. All persons appointed or elected to offices, boards,
commissions and agencies in the town of Brewster on the effective date of
this act shall continue to perform the duties thereof until they are

reappointed or re-elected or until successors to their respective positions

21




H 4738

are appointed or elected or until their duties have been transferred and
assumed by another town office, board, commission or agency.

SECTION 4. Any person holding an office or a position in the
administrative service of the town of Brewster or any person holding
permanent employment under the town on the effective date of this act shall
retain their office, position or position of employment and shall continue to
perform the duties of their respective office, position or position of
employment until provision has been made for the performance of those duties
by another person or agency; provided, however, that a person in the
permanent service of the town shall not forfeit their pay grade or time in

the service of the town as a result of the adoption of the town charter.

to that person’s continued sgervice or employment with the town than that
person had before the effective date of this act. Nothing in this section
shall impair the rights of any person under an individual employment contract

or collective bargaining agreement.

SECTION 5. All records, property and eguipment of a office, board,
commission, committee or agency or part thereof of the town of Brewster, the
powers and duties of which are assigned in whole or in part to another town
office, board, commission or agency by this act shall be transferred
forthwith to the office, board, commission or agency as so assigned.

SECTION 6. All official bonds, recognizances, obligations, contracts and
other instruments entered into or executed by, on behalf of or to the town of
Brewster before the effective date of this act, and all taxes, assessments,
fines, penalties and forfeitures, incurred or imposed or due or owing to the
town of Brewster, shall be enforced and collected and all writs,
prosecutions, actions and causes of action, except as herein otherxwise

provided, shall continue without abatement and remain unaffected by the

|| adoption of the charter in section and no legal act done by or in favor of
|| the town shall be rendered invalid by reason of the passage of this act.

SECTION 7. To provide for the transition to reduce the texrms of all

planning board members of the town of Brewster from 5-year terms to 4-year

terms, at the next regular election following at least 64 days after the

year term, 1 planning board member shall be elected for a 2-year term and the

expiring term shall be placed on the ballot for a 4-year term. The expiring

ieffective date of this act, 1 planning board mewker shall be elected for a 1-
| 22

effective date of this act with any greater rights or privileges with regardI

Nothing in this section shall provide a person holding an administrativel

office or position or a person serving in the employment of the town on the |




H 4738

term shall appear on the ballot with instructions to vote for 1 candidafe;
provided, however, that if the incumbent is running for the office, the
incumbent shall have the words “candidate for re-election” next to their
name. The 2-year term and the l-year term shall appear together on the ballot
| with instructions to voters to vote for 2 candidates, with the longer term
going to the candidate with the most votes. Following the effective date of
this act, the term of the planning board member most recently elected shall
be reduced from 5 years to 4 years. Thereafter, all planning board members
shall be elected to alternating 4-year terms, with no more than 2 terms
expiring each year.

SECTION 8. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

ENDORSEMENT FOLLOW ON PAGE 24

23




H 4738

House of Representatives, January 3 . 2023.

Passed to be enacted, /; / A@ﬂ'f.ﬁﬁf' Speaker
'\,Q d,,«,./z _ R z

In Senate, January Lf , 2023.

Passed to be enacted, M%’—”“\ , President.
f| —_—
. d }—/ , 2023.

Approved,
at ; o'clock and/& fminutes, ﬂ M.
Governor.

24




§ 6-5. Appointment; terms. [Amended 11-13-2006 FYTM, Art. 15; 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

The Select Board shall appoint a Golf Commission of seven members to serve as the policy-making
board of the Captains Golf Course. Each member shall be appointed for a staggered term of three years.
Reappointment at the end of a term shall be determined by the Selectmen. All vacancies shall be filled
by the Select Board. The Select Board may appoint a member to serve the unexpired term of a former

member.,

§ 6-6. Purpose. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

A. In fulfilling its responsibility to the Town of Brewster, the Select Board, the Town Administrator
and the Golf Commission shall be guided by two basic principles, as follows:

(1) The golf course shall be operated and maintained so as to pay its expenses and return a
reasonable profit to the Town.

(2) The golf course shall be operated and maintained as a facility available to the residents of the
Town.

B. The Golf Commission shall be responsible for the preparation of near and long-term plans, policies
and strategies, including, but not limited to, eligibility for use, fees, hours of operation, block-time
approval and liaison with various golf associations and other golf course users. Any changes in
policies, regulations, procedures or operations that would alter these principles or change their stated
priority shall be approved by the Select Board.

§ 6-7. Removal. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

Members of the Golf Commission may be removed by the Select Board for reasonable and good cause.

§ 6-8. Required reports.

The Golf Commission shall, within 30 days after the end of the fiscal year, make a report to the citizens
of the Town.

§ 6-9. Audit.

The Golf Department will be subject to an audit in the same manner as other boards, committees,
commissions and departments and shall respond appropriately to its recommendations.

§ 6-10. Appointment. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

The Director of Operations of the golf course, appointed by the Select Board pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 5, Art. I, § 5-3C of the Brewster Town Code, may enter into an employment contract for a period
of up to three years.



§ 6-5. Appointment; terms. [Amended 11-13-2006 FYTM, Art. 15; 11-13-2017
FYTM, Art. 13]

The Select Board shall appoint a Golf Commission of seven members to serve as
the policy-making board of the Captains Golf Course. Each member shall be
appointed for a staggered term of three years. Reappointment at the end of a term
shall be determined by the Select Board . All vacancies shall be filled by the Select
Board. The Select Board may appoint a member to serve the unexpired term of a
former member. All appointments will be made in accordance with Select Board

Policy #6.

§ 6-6. Purpose. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

A. In fulfilling its responsibility to the Town of Brewster, the Select Board, the
Town Manager and the Golf Commission shall be guided by two basic principles,
as follows:

(1) The Captains golf facility shall be operated as an Enterprise Fund in accordance
with MGL Chapter 44: 53F1/2.

(2) The golf course shall be operated and maintained as a recreational facility
available to the residents of the Town as well as to the general public.

B The Golf Commission, in coordination with the Director of Golf and the
Course Superintendent, shall be responsible for establishing near and long-term
plans, policies and strategies as well as daily, routine operational processes for the
golf course. These include, but are not limited to, eligibility for use, hours of
operation, block time approval, allocation of tee times between Annual Fee Players
and Daily Fee Players, annual calendar development, course website, publicity,
and strategic communications with the golf course associations, general
membership, and town residents. Working with the Town Manager, the town’s
finance team, the Director of Golf and the Course Superintendent, the Commission
shall be responsible for the annual review and refinement of the long-term Capital
Plan. The Golf Commission, where appropriate, will provide input on golf
department RFPs. The Golf Commission will provide recommendations on
financial matters and golf related fees to the Select Board and Finance Committee
as appropriate. Any changes in policies, regulations, procedures or daily
operations that would alter the principles established in paragraph A above or
change their stated priority shall be approved by the Select Board.

§ 6-7. Removal. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]
Members of the Golf Commission may be removed by the Select Board for
reasonable and good cause.



§ 6-8. Required reports.
The Golf Commission shall, in accordance with the timetable provided by the

Town Manager, make a report to the citizens of the Town.

§ 6-9. Audit.
The Golf Department will be subject to an audit in the same manner as other

boards, committees, commissions and departments and shall respond appropriately
to its recommendations.



§ 6-5. Appointment; terms. [Amended 11-13-2006 FYTM, Art. 15; 11-13-2017
FYTM, Art. 13]

The Select Board shall appoint a Golf Commission of seven members to serve as
the policy-making board of the Captains Golf Course. Each member shall be
appointed for a staggered term of three years. Reappointment at the end of a term
shall be determined by the Select Board . All vacancies shall be filled by the Select
Board. The Select Board may appoint a member to serve the unexpired term of a
former member. All appointments will be made in accordance with Select Board

Policy #6.

§ 6-6. Purpose. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]

A. In fulfilling its responsibility to the Town of Brewster, the Select Board, the
Town Manager and the Golf Commission shall be guided by two basic principles,
as follows:

(1) The Captains golf facility shall be operated as an Enterprise Fund in accordance
with MGL Chapter 44: 53F1/2.

(2) The golf course shall be operated and maintained as a recreational facility
available to the residents of the Town as well as to the general public.

B The Golf Commission, in coordination with the Director of Golf and the
Course Superintendent, shall be responsible for establishing near and long-term
plans, policies and strategies as well as daily, routine operational processes for the
golf course. These include, but are not limited to, eligibility for use, hours of
operation, block time approval, allocation of tee times between Annual Fee Players
and Daily Fee Players, annual calendar development, course website, publicity,
and strategic communications with the golf course associations, general
membership, and town residents. Working with the Town Manager, the town’s
finance team, the Director of Golf and the Course Superintendent, the Commission
shall be responsible for the annual review and refinement of the long-term Capital
Plan. The Golf Commission, where appropriate, will provide input on golf
department RFPs. The Golf Commission will provide recommendations on
financial matters and golf related fees to the Select Board and Finance Committee
as appropriate. Any changes in policies, regulations, procedures or daily
operations that would alter the principles established in paragraph A above or
change their stated priority shall be approved by the Select Board.

§ 6-7. Removal. [Amended 11-13-2017 FYTM, Art. 13]
Members of the Golf Commission may be removed by the Select Board for
reasonable and good cause.



BUDGET STATUS rev. 7/31/23

FY 2024 FY 2023
i | % of ' % of
Expended thru | Budget Expended thru Budget
77777 _ July | Budget Balance  Spent July Budget Balance _ Spent
WAGES P WAGES | ] |
Ful-time Wages $ 60,810.90 | $1,106,892.00 $1,046,081.10 | 5.5%| Fulktime Wages $ 64,665.92 $1,001,971.00 $ 937,305.08 6.5%
Part-time Wages $ 59,012.08 ! $ 570,394.00 $ 511,381.92 10.3%| Part-time Wages $ 56,700.30 $ 518,540.00 $ 461,839.70 | 10.9%
Overtime § 815354 | $ 67,302.00 $ 69,148.46 12.1%|Overtime |8 832027 § 6118400 | $ 52,863.73 | 13.6%
Longevity - 15, - |$ 14170.00 $ 14,170.00  0.0%|Longevity 3 - % 15197.00 | § 15197 o | 0.0%
Contracual Obligations $ - |$ 3300000 $ 33,000.00 Contractual Obligations_ $ - 8 -8 -
R - |8 - $ = S $ - 18 - 8 = .
$ - $ - $ - $ - 18 -8 |
SUBTOTAL $ 127,976.52  $1,791,758.00 $1,663,781.48 | 7.1%|SUBTOTAL $ 129,686.49 | §1,506,892.00 $1,467,205.51 8.1%
S S g ! i
GENERAL EXPENSES | - GENERAL EXPENSES i
Cil/Grease $ -~ $ 350000 $  3,500.00 0.0%|Oi/Grease $ - § 320000 $ 3,200.00 0.0%
Diesel Fuel K - |'$ 1250000 $ 12,500.00 | 0.0%|Diesel Fuel $ - {$ 1050000 § 10,500.00 0.0%
Heating ) $ '$ 1600000 $ 16,000.00 | 0.0% Heating |8 - |'$ 1400000 $  14,000.00 0.0%
Gasoline B |$ 13,000.00 § 13,000.00 | _0.0%|Gasoline $ - |$ 900000 $ 900000  0.0%
|Electricity $__ 4601 28 [$ 50,000.00 $ 45398.72 | 9.2%Electricity _ $§ 540312 |§ 4876000 $ 43,266.88  11.3%
Electricity-lrrigation Pump $ 107349 |§ 25000.00 $ 23,926.51 | 4.3%)Electricity- Irrigation Pump | $  2,545.90 $ 23,320.00 $ 20,774.10 10.9%
R&M Equipment $ 419858 $ 95000.00 § 90,801.41  4.4% R&M Equipment $ 413203 $ 88,000.00 §$ 83,867.97 4.7%
[R&M Irrigation $ 304677 $ 4000000 $ 36953.23 7.6%|R&M Irrigation $ - |§ 37,0000 $ 37,000.00 0.0%
| Proffessional/Technical $ 81708 $ 850000 $  7,682.92 | 9.6%|ProffessionalTechnical $ - |$ 450000 $ 450000  0.0%
OSHA Training B $ - '§ 250000 $ 2500.00 | 0.0%|OSHA Training _ $ |$ 250000 $  2,500.00 0.0%
Phones_ $ |$ 160000 $  1,600.00  0.0% Phones $ - |$ 160000 $ 160000 _ 0.0%)
Alarm $ Bqnpg_j 2,20000 §  1,600.00 | 27.3%|Alarm $ 98740 |$ 220000 | $§ 121260  44.9%
Office Supplies $ -5 1000000 $ 10,000.00  0.0%|Office Supplies $  1,303.70 |$  9,500.00 $ 819630  13.7%
Score Cards $ - $ 6,00000 $§ 6000.00 0.0%|Score Cards $ - 5,000.00 ' $ 5,000.00 0.0%
Maintenance Supplies $ 598.46 | $  15,000.00 $ 14,401.54 | 4.0% Maintenance Supplies_ $ 760.56 | $ 12,000.00 $ 11,239.44 6.3%
Range Supplies - $ 736.86 $ 13,000.00 $ 12,263.14  5.7%|Range Supplies $ 5464 ' § 13,000.00 |$§ 12,945.36 0.4%
Computer Supplies '$ 43400 $ B8500.00 $§  8016.00  5.7%|Computer Supplies $ 134000 $ 800000 $  6,660.00  16.8%
Custodial Supplies $ 854.01 | § 2500000 $ 24,14599  3.4%|Custodial Supplies $ 44095 |$ 2200000 $ 21,559.05 2.0%
Rubbish Removal/Sanitation _ |$ - | § 35000.00 § 35000.00  0.0%|Rubbish Removal/Sanitation | § - |$ 2000000 § 20,000.00 0.0%
Seed & Sod 13 - '$ 3500000 $ 35000.00 0.0%|Seed&Sod $ $ 20,00000 $ 29,000.00  0.0%
Tee & Green . $ - |$ 1300000 $ 13,000.00 _ 0.0%]|Tee & Green $ - |$ 1200000 8 12,00000 |  0.0%
Landscaping $ - '$ 800000 $ 8000.00  0.0%]|Landscaping 3 s 500000/ S  5000.00 0.0%
Topsoil & Sand $ - 4DD00.00 $  40,000.00  0.0%|Tapsoil & Sand Bk 836.92 § 31,500.00 1 $  30,663.08 2.7%
Fertilizer ~|s 858000 $ 100,000.00 $ 91420.00  8.6%|Fertiizer $ 7400 $ 9600000 ' $ 9582600  0.1%
Fungicide $ - § 13500000 $ 135000.00  0.0% Fungicide _ $ - '§ 126,000.00 | $ 126,000.00 0.0%
Insecticides $ "5 20,0000 $ 20,000.00 _0.0%|Insecticides $ _ - '8 1600000 )% 1600000 0.0%
Misc. Wetting AgentsiLime | $  1,39483 $ 60,000.00 $ 58,605.17  2.3% Misc. Wetting Agents/Lime $ -"¢ 5800000 $ 6800000  0.0%
Cart Lease o $ 18,500.00 § 111,000.00 $ 92,500.00 16.7%|Cart Lease $ 37,00000 $ 111,000.00 8 74,000.00 | 33.3%
Clubhouse Fum./Repair $ 299497 $ 5100000 § 4800503  5.9%|Clubhouse Fumn./Repair 3 801.73 $  50,000.00 1§ 49,198.27 1.6%
Credit Card Expense $ 15.00 § 85,000.00 $ 84,985.00  0.0%|Credit Card Expense § 1500 § 75000.00)$ 7498500 0.0%
Environmental Monitoring $ - § 350000 $ 3,500.00 0.0% Environmental Manitoring $ - % 300000 ;% 3,000.00 | 0.0%|
Safety Clothing Allowance $ 94674 $ 10,000.00 $  9,053.26  9.5%|Safety Clothing Allowance $ - § 900000 $ 9,000.00 0.0%
Mileage-Maintenance 18 - 8% 450.00 $ 450,00 0.0% |Mileage-Maintenance $ - 13 450.00 | § 450.00 0.0%
Meetings/Travel $ - $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 0.0% |Meetings/Travel $ $ 2,500.00 ; $ 2,500.00 0.0%
Dues and Subscriptions $ 187500 $ 410000 $  2,225.00 | 45.7%|Dues and Subscriptions | $ 1 335 00 $ 4,100001% 276500  32.6%
Clothing Allowance-Admin $ - $ 400000 § 4 ,000,00  0.0% | Clothing Allowance-Admin [ - 4,000.00  $ 4,00000  0.0%
Advertising/Promatians $ 245500 $§ 50,000.00 $ 47,845.00  4.3% Advertising/Promotions $ 133000 $ 50,000.00 | $ 48,670.00 2.7%
CVEC Administration Charges | $ -~ '$ 4B88.00 $ 4688.00  0.0% CVEC Administration Charges | $ - | § 4688000 % 468800  0.0%
$ - 8 - $ - o $ - 8 - 8 -
|8 - 5 - 8 * o $ - $ - (s -
= - $ - 8 -8 : $ -8 - 18 - =
k] - $ - $ - 1 $ - $ - |8 -
. _ 3 - 3 - $ - B - 8 CR ] s
o _ |3 - |8 - $ = | | % - % - |8 =
$ - $ - $ = $ = $ - (8 =
SUBTOTAL $  53,472.08  $1,119,538,00 $1,066,065.92 4.8% |SUBTOTAL $  58,450.95 $1,021,318.00 | $§ 962,867.05 5.7%
Other Expenses: i [ - ____Other Expenses: ) o=
Transfer to Trust s - | § 21,00000 $ 21,000.00 0% Transfer to Trust s - § 71,00000 $ 21,000.00 0%
Pro Shop Purchases_ |'$ 1247466 | $ 240,000.00 $ 227,525.34 5% Pro Shop Purchases $ 21,367.33  § 230,000.00 | § 20863267 9%
Capital 1% - s - $ Capital - 3 - 18 - $ = -
Indirect Costs s 7§ 211,619.00_$ 211,619.00_ 0% Indirect Costs I - $ 205356.00 | § 205,356.00 | 0%
Life Insurance $ 52,85 $ 712,00 § 659.15 7% Life Insurance $ 55.88 671.00 $ 61512 8%
_Unemployment | $ - |$ 5000000 $ 50,000.00 0% Unemployment '$ - $ 55080.00 |'$  55,080.00 0%
Health Insurance | § 23,704, 75 | § 373,092.00 $ 349,387.25 6% Health Insurance $ 21,336.50 $ 343,608.00 $ 322,271.50 | 6%
Medicare - 3 - |5 2605000 $ 26050.00 0% Medicare K - 5 23976.00 | $ 23,976.00 0%
Compensated Absences '$ 1.308.00 $ 20,000.00 $  18,692.00 | 7% Compensated Absences ' $ 2,308.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 17,692.00 | 12%
Workers Compensation | $ 11,324.00 |$ 1600000 $ 467600 _ 71% Workers Compensation '$ 1060500 $ 16480.00 %3  5875.00 64%
General Liability Insurance '$ 70,386.77 | |$ 8200000 $ 11.613.23  86% General Liability Insurance '$ 6826224 § 81,198.00 | $  12,935.76 84%,
“Retirement/Pension Exp. . $ 296,704.66 | $ 296,705.00 $ 034 100% Retirement/Pension Exp. |'$ 23855400 $ 238,554.00 | § * 100%
Transfer to Capital Stabilizaton $ - | § 350,000.00 $ 350,000.00 | 0% _ $ - $ 400,000.00 | $ 400,000 00 | 0%
SUBTOTAL |'§ 415,955.69 | $1,687,178.00 §1,271,222.31  25% SUBTOTAL |'s 362,488.95 $1,635,923.00 | § 1,273,434.05 22%
|GRAND TOTAL § 597,404.29 | $4.508,474.00 §4,001.069.71 __ 13% GRAND TOTAL | § 550,626.39 §4,254,133.00  $ 3,703 506.61 13%




CAPTAINS GOLF COURSE COMPARISON REPORT

REVENUE’

MEMBERSHIPS:
RESIDENTS - Early
RESIDENTS - Morning
RESIDENTS - Twilight
CHARTER NON-RESIDENTS
NON-RESIDENTS
NON-RESIDENT TWILIGHT
AFP COLLEGIATE

AFP JUNIOR

SUBTOTAL

GREEN FEES:

18 HOLE GREEN FEE
TWILIGHT GREEN FEES
BACK 8 GREEN FEES
ADVANCED RESERVATIONS

SUBTOTAL

CARTS:
18 HOLE CART
9 HOLE CART

SUBTOTAL

DRIVING RANGE
PULL CARTS

SNACK BAR RENT
GIFT CERTIFICATES
CREDIT BOOK

PRO SHOP SALES
HANDICAP REVENUE
SOLAR REVENUE
MISC. SALES

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL REVENUE

JULY

Jul-18 Jul-19 Jul-20 Jul-21 Jul-22 Jul-23
$ 1050500 $ 300900 § 937700 $ 631800 § - $  1,300.00
$ (2385000 $ 501000 $ (793.00) $ 3,390.00 $ 328000 $ 1,980.00
$ 212500 $ 1,33800 § 238400 $ 234000 $ 364000 § 1,080.00
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 318000 $ 500700 $ 8760.00 § (1,752.00) $ 208000 § 2,165.00
$ 190500 $ - $ 350000 $ 70000 $ 231000 $  800.00
$ 74000 $ 94500 $ 122100 $ 1221.00 § 45000 § -
$ 82000 $ 388.00 $ 49600 § 29200 § - $  496.00
$§ 16,890.00 $ 15697.00 $ 24,94500 § 12,509.00 § 1176000 $ 7.821.00
§ 379,855.97 $ 397,052.87  §436,784.92  $ 423769.98  § 44941200 $ 482,235.05
$ 3618460 $ 45900.00 $ 53,31299 $ 5079320 § 52,789.00  $ 104,897.00
§ 2495301 § 27,066.00 $ 27.426.00 § 3687700 $ 66,138.01 § 8,144.00
$ 1488450 S 772760 $ 816920 $ 616370 $ 237400 $  2,580.00
$ 455878.08 § 477,746.47  $ 52569311  § 517,603.88  § 570,713.01  §$ 597,856.05
$ 124,042.32  $ 127,026.10  $ 133,960.38  § 145159.30  § 151,01270  $ 152,347.13
$§ 2821902 $ 3144458 $ 2964495 $ 3109310 § 36611.55 § 35805.33
$ 152,261.34  $ 158,470.68  § 163,605.33  § 176,252.40  §$ 187,624.25  $ 188,152.46
$ 2766400 § 34,346.00 $ 31,020.00 $ 3444600 $ 38823.00 $ 41,370.00
$ 1,90464 §  1,74999 § 249246 $ 1,34031 $ 1,53219 $ 1,840.89
$ 500000 $ 500000 $ 500000 $ 500000 $ 500000 $ -
$ (6651.70) § (6941.83) $ (5322.76) $ (6144.01) $ (5970.77) $ (9,077.59)
$  (356.76) & (422.08) $ (261.54) $ 241762 $ 251516 $  469.08
$ 5639063 § 5317165 $ 38543.80 $ 57,300.88 $ 6372190 $ 74,085.74
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 3 - 3 $ - $ - $ 3
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 193600 $ 3,270.10
$ 8404181 $ 8690373 $ 71,480.96 $ 94,360.80 $ 97,557.48  § 111,958.22
$ 709,071.23  § 738,817.88  § 785,724.40  §$ 800,726.08  $ 867,654.74  § 905787.73



R CAPTAINS GOLF COURSE COMPARISON REPORT
. CALENDARYEAR THROUGH JULY (7months)

__——

YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2020 YEAR 2021 YEAR 2022 YEAR 2023
REVENUE
MEMBERSHIPS:
RESIDENTS - Early $ 274,098.85 $ 306,661.00 $ 311,796.02 $ 282,097.00 $ 390,561.00 $§ 395146.71
RESIDENTS - Morning $ 216,681.99 $ 212,836.45 $ 195,061.00 $ 167,045.70 $ 261,186.50 $§ 293,432.70
RESIDENTS - Twilight $ 41,475.00 $ 47,088.33 $ 58,804.00 $ 52,183.00 $ 66,316.40 § 69,746.00
CHARTER NON-RESIDENTS  § 6,895.00 $ 7,240.00 $ 6,080.00 $ 7,600.00 $ - $ =]
NON-RESIDENTS $ 312,148.00 $ 328,242.00 $ 347,023.00 $ 407,522.00 $ 53819287 § 560,529.96
NON-RESIDENT TWILIGHT $ 40,425.00 $ 40,691.00 3 63,341.00 $ 70,948.00 $ B1,951.00 $  72,004.00
COLLEGIATE 3 4,760.00 $ 7,441.00 $ 20,101.00 $ 19,993.00 $ 18,380.00 § 17,200.00
JUNIORS $ 2,910.00 $ 4,442.00 $ 5,960.00 $ 5,172.00 $ 391700 § 4,956.00
SUBTOTAL $ 899,393.84 $ 954,641.78 $ 1,008,166.02 $ 1,012,560.70 $ 1,361,504.77 $ 1,413,015.37
GREEN FEES:
18 HOLE GREEN FEE $ 375,542.00 $ 354,367.52 $ 179,868.94 $ 869,176.44 $ 940,140.24 $ 1,005,815.55
TWILIGHT GREEN FEES $ 45351.00 $ 53,171.30 3 49,771.00 $ 122,751.20 $ 131,693.98 $ 223,936.04
BACK 9 GREEN FEES $ 14,364.00 $ 15,535.85 $ 15,037.00 $ 71,885.00 $ 119,732.14 $  42,260.00
ADVANCED RESERVATIONS §  72.233.20 $ 68,882.60 3 14,202.20 $ 35,849.90 $  26,079.55 $  43.416.75
SUBTOTAL $ 507,490.20 $ 491,957.37 $ 258,879.14 $ 1,099,662.54 $ 1,217,645.91 $ 1,315,428.34
CARTS:
18 HOLE CART $ 172,373.08 $ 149,501.12 $ 65,132.91 $ 334,825.57 $ 346,112.57 $ 38472594
9 HOLE CART $  31,996.30 $ 25214.96 $ 22,222.57 $ 76,418.92 $ 8130548 $ 8997235
SUBTOTAL $ 204,369.38 $ 174,716.08 $ 87,355.48 $  411,244.49 $ 427,418.05 $ 474,698.29
DRIVING RANGE $ 41,995.80 $ 51,376.00 $ 25,240.00 $ 97,082.00 $ 106,908.00 $ 108,067.00
PULL CARTS $ 2,387.34 $ 2,339.24 $ 1,786.92 3 3,375.25 $ 2,995.08 $ 3,882.42
SNACK BAR RENT $ 8,500.00 $ 10,451.58 $ - $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 6,000.00
GIFT CERTIFICATES $ 107.08 $  (3,839.22) $ (5,484.28) $ 4,731.99) $ (8,364.90) $ (12,573.41)
CREDIT BOOK $ 3,151.16 $ 1,725.01 $ (516.87) $ 6,803.11 $ 507522 $ 11,845.31
PRO SHOP SALES $ 105,836.05 $ 103,384.51 $ 39,175.70 $ 156,887.08 $ 179,538.89 § 194,356.24
HANDICAP REVENUE $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 10,460.00
SOLAR REVENUE $ $ - § - $ = $ - $ 72,117.00
MISC. SALES $ - 3 - $ - 3 = $ 5,727.09 $ 4,085.75
SUBTOTAL $ 161,977.43 $ 16543712 $ 60,201.47 $ 264,41545 $ 297,780.38 $ 398,240.31
TOTAL REVENUE $1,773,230.85 $1,786,752.35 $§ 1,414,602.11 $ 2,787,883.18 $ 3,304,349.11 $ 3,601,382.31



GUEST PLAY ) 1 " "MEMBER PLAY | oRanD |
DATE | DAY B8  TWHT | PP | COMP | OTHER | TOT-GST | 18 B9 | TWHT _TOTMBR TOTALS COMMENTSWEATHER
2 112 | 3| 369 | 142 14| 59 215 | 584 Partly Cloudy, 75 deg
: 160 | - 10 | 438 | 151 12 48 211 640 Cloudy, Warm, 75 deg j
5 161 | = 391 | 1 4] 68 _ 183 574 Rain AM, Clouds PM, B2 deg
7. 73 - 4] - 329 | 91| 8] 65 164 | 493 Storms, 80 deg_
11 133 | 1] 6l - 378 | 128 12| 125 265 i 643 Sunny. 75 deg =
3] 123 - ] 14 387 | 126 26 56 208 595 Sunny, Humid, 83 deg
3] 135 | 1] 7. 5 381 | 154 24 | 91 269 | 650 Sunny, Warm, 75 deg
11 86 - i1 337 | 145 3] 88 217 554 | Clousy, Humid, 80 deg N
- 126 - i1 - 206 | | 176 _ 6| 86 268 | 564 | Cloudy, 80 deg _
i 53 -~ | 4] 217 ! 156 23 81 260 477 | Rainy, Humid, 1 deg _ ]
11 I 4] 5 - 267 | 133 11 78 22 489 | Hot, Humid, 83 deg B
A 78 1] 37 206 | 154 8 95 258 | 464 | Sunny, Hot, 86 deg_ |
3 4 - 290 119 25 70 214 504 Hot, Humid, 90 deg
4| 8 - 273 | 120 | 17 50 187 | 460 | Rain, Thunder, Sun 80deg |
5] 4] = 325 154 8 46 208 | 533 | Cloudy, Humid, 85 deg [ |
| 5 = 245 | 170 | 1 53 224 | 469 | _ Rain/Sun, Humid, 78 deg |avg. perday
6| = 264 152 | 18 17 287 551 | Hot, Humid, 85 deg 551.74 |
6| = 290 | 86 237 527 | Hot,85deg |
8| = 274 84 234 508 | Partly Cloudy, Humid, 82 deg .| 1
12 | S 297 44 244 541 | Hot, Humid, 85 deg |
4 - 350 67 280 830 | Sunny, 82 deg
1] 338 47 204 542 | Sunny, Nice, 80 deg .
14 | - 332 | | 183 | S| 67 2558 | 587 |  Sunny, Humid, 80 deg
3| - 306 | 146 | 14 121 281 587 | _Humid, 83deg
5| - 251 120 | 8 78 207 458 | Sunny, Humid, 82 deg | = i
6| " 314 | 154 | 27, 1 260 | 574 Sun,Hot, Humid, 88deg |
12| z 335 | 140 | 27 ] 58 226 | 561 Hot, Humid, 88 deg _
8 - | 30 | 130 | 17 | 77 224 564 Hot, Gross, 89 deg _ 1
! 1 7 = 378 | 116 5| 49 170 548 Hot,84deg |
233 6 6 : 13 = 354 160 12 17 289 843 Sunny, Beautiful, 75 deg
207 | 2 91 B - - 300 183 5 93 281 581 Sunny. Nice, 78 deg
I TOTALS | 5,228 118 | 3,209 96 | 204 - 9852 | | 4472 455 2,325 7,252 17,104 _ 0 Days Closed | i
B July-22 | 6119 | 1,701 o4 | 219 | 79 4,607 1,390 | 12391 7,388 17,406 0 Days Closed I
E duly7t| 8116 | 52 76 - 4656 1318 | 1558 7,532 16,488 | I [
July-20| 5891 | T 24 74 - 8,603 | | 4,991 772 1942 7,705 16,308 . I
July9| 5695 | 676 1,547 71 182 4225 984| 1,140 6,359 | 14,530 =
July48| 5,735 | 732 | 1,432 81| 283 106 | 4203 1086 1,217 6,606 14,975 I 1 B
I | I ___| el | |
Juty-17 T 1,682 111 | 189 206 8242 4415 1,072 972 6459 14,701 | -
July-ui 1,748 131 | 8,557 | 4,401 1,363 875 6,635 15,196 |
T July15|  e47s | 331 1439 T 204 8,805 | 4428 1,162 _ 1,035 6625 | 15430 = B
== = | | ! =y | I I
 July14| 5825 241 1,273 92 | 7,742 4433 1,048 741 6,222 | 12,964 N
l | | I I | DRV i : e
July-13 | 5,530 | 280 | 1,250 120 7,790 1,063 579 5770 | 13,560 ; o
| i
i  duly12] 6336 275| 1,267 171 | 8,484 4,784 1,233 363 6,380 14,864 B
July-11 | 5964 264 | 1,276 254 | 228 3a1 8327 4859 1,317 368 6,544 | 14871 = - =
i i July-10 | 5,188 | 206 | 1462 319 | 206 7,712 663 1,338 490 6,491 14203 | N | =
i :
 Juty-09| 260 1,503 a75 | 238 240 8518 | 4582| 1,260 347 6,189 | 14,707 | -
1 ]
July-08 | 6113 289 | __ 1,416 464 | 2235 565 9,070 4133 1,373 1,280 67661 15856 | -
July-07 | 6412 | 295 | 1,496 398 | 204 478 9,283 5154 1,302 477 6933 16,216 | ~ I
| | ( |
July-0s| 5817 | 332 | 709 | 236 359 8879 5359 | 1338 400 7,098 1 15977 | i il
| B | ee— ==l il | Y S | I = ;
 July-05| 4,259 480 | 2,265 236 481 8003 5538 | 1,493 | 6501 7,632 16,535 |
I |
) 428 | 1,233 1,747 257 200 8,316 5158 | 1475 794 7,487 T i5742 | N B
i ; . 1 1 . | [
) 412 | 1338 | 1,963 222 222 8731 4946 | 1.263 599 6,808 15,539 | T
1
T 434 1485 2,389 205 56 1,425 343 6,799 15,885 = i
= 431 | 1,315 3,969 159 31 1,514 236 6,588 15.508 | o
359 | 1,052 | 3067 105 (5] 4567 | 920 | 581 5,078 13831 -

MONTH: Jul-23




TOTAL
GUEST PLAY MEMBER PLAY PLAY
|18 hole Back 9 | Twilight " Guest | Back 9 | Twilight | Member | Monthly | Member
green Prepaids, w/mbr | green Misc. Play (18 holeplay play | play Play Totals | Play %
January 152 - 95 53 15 315 1,100 | 285 138 | 1,523 1,838 83%
February 186 - 60 | 76| 24 346 791 212 | 101| 1,104 1450 |  76%
March 28| - 128 | 99 13 508 1,356 |  385| 149 | 1,890 2,398 79%
April 1,000 | 213 263 371 11| 2,087 | 2302 730 433 | 3,465 5,522 63%
May 2,495 361 254 | 1,004 | 1,217 | 5,331 3,307 | 1,086 864 | 5,257 10,588 50%
June 3,974 180  100| 1,816 329| 6,399 3,687 462 | 1,926| 6,075 12474 | 49%
[ July 6228| 96 115 | 3,209 204 | 9852| 4472 455 | 2325 7,252 17,104 42%
August - | - - - - - - - i - - - #DIV/O!
September - I - - - - - - - - | #Diviol
October - - - |- 8 - - - - - - | - | T#nvion
November - - - - - B - L - - - #DIV/0! |
December - - - - - - - - - - - | _#DIv/o!
TOTALS 14402 | 850 | 1,015| 6628| 1913| 24,808 17,015 | 3,615| 5936| 26,566 | 51,374 52%
| | | N (| ] _ ;s —
2022 25,465 1,650 6471 | 6,867 2,760 43,213 30,465 8,671 7,407 46,543 | 89,756 52%
2021 | 264122 1,201 3939 B265 1,376 40,903 34,259 7,995 10,569 52,823 | 93726 |  56%
2020 | 23830 531 2,503 8682 564 36,110 3,240 4,728 11,480 | 48,648 84,758 |  57%
2019 | 22138 1769 2,344 6,082 2,501 34,924 26,234 5425 6,833 38,492 73,416 52%
2018 22289 1,888 | 2032 6112 3,932 36,253 25,608 | 6,171 6,363 | 38,142 74,395 51%
| T
2017 21,905 1,907 | 1,825 6,534 | 2,926 35097 | 26477 6426 5477 | 38,380 73,477 |  52%
2016 23,902 | 2,357 | 1,809 6,595 | 4,206 38,889 27,309 | 7,663 | 5,577 | 40,549 79418 |  51%
2015 25318 | 2,216 | 1,474 6,117 | 3,435 | 38,260 24845 | 5605 | 5502 35952 74,212 |  48%
! | fis =<ie, _
2014 | 23422 2,405 929 5885 | 3,867 36,508 26145 5975 3,932 | 36,052 72,560 |  50%
| | | |
2013 23,220 | 2,438 | 1,138 6,311 | 3,799 | 36,906 25748 | 6,108 | 3,769 | 35625 | 72,631 |  49%
2012 235231 2,636 1,231 661 3,618 37,169 28,694 7,121 | 2,963 | 38,778 75,947 51%
2011 23,723 | 3,242 843 5128 3,449 36,385 28,422 6,854 2,678 37,954 74,339 51%
: i :
2010 20,652 3,180 878 6,594 4,457 35761| 27,379 6,782 3442 37,603 73,364 51%
2009 22986 | 3,517 ""”2’,?)89 5011 | 5218 | 38821 | 26929 | 6,107 3,160 36,196 75,017 48%
2008 23, 524_l 4532 1,204 | 53837 5816 40,963 25997 6,959 5918 38,874 79,837 49%
2007 3/ 1,177 | 6,544 6,577 43,269 29,758 7,470 3,353 40,581 83,850 48%
L _J_ ' [ 1 P I
2006 22099 | 7,080 1485 5828 6,962 43,454 31,342 7,376 3,654 42,372 85826 |  49%
2005 16,577 | 11,048 2162 4,601 6,404 41,692 28,879 7,270 4,869 41,018 82,710 50%
B N _| e | S
2004 16,731 | 12,074 % 1,858 | 4,602 5472 40,737 30,078 7,250 4,212 41,540 82,277 |  50%
2003 17,168 | 12,342 | 1,912 4371 5397 41,990 | 28,837 6,085 3,800 38,702 79,892 |  48%
. B | . o = o o e _ |
2002 17,705 | 15353 | 1,953 5482 4,487 44,980 30,641 7,411 3,205 40,957 85,937 48%
[ | [ ] | ) |/
2001 13,280 | 21,699 1,943 5,034 4,070 46,026 30,163 7,039 1,837 | 39,039 85,065 46%
2000 | 14,082 18987 | 1,779 | 3,480 2,382 40,710 28967 4,375 2,879 | 36,221 76,931 47%)




FY 2024 Projections by month

REVENUES:

Season Passes
Green Fees

Cart Fees

Driving Range

Pro Shop Revenues
Restaurant Rent
Solar Array
Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES:

Wages

Operating Expenses

Pra Shop Purchases

Life Insurance
Unemployment

Health Insurance

Medicare

Compensated Absences
Workers Compensation
Retirement/Pension

Liability & Property insurance
Transfer to Trust )
Contractual Obligations
Indirect Casts

Transfer to Capital Stahilizatian
FY23 Capitat

TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS/{DEFICIT)

REVENUES:
Season Passes
Green Fees

Cart Fees

Driving Range

Pro Shop Revenues
Restaurant Rent
Solar Array
Miscellaneous
Gift Certificates
Credit Book
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES:

Wages

Qperating Expenses

Pro Shop Purchases

Life Insurance
Unemployment

Health Insurance

Medicare

Compensated Absences
Workers Compensation
Retirement/Pension

Liability & Property Insurance
Transfer to Trust

indirect Costs

Transfer to Capital Stabilization
Capita!

FY23 Capital

TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

A A B A s i

B Y Y L R R R LA ART SRV RPNV AT 7 S

A k5 R A AP A Y S B

e AR A A B D D WD A S A A A S N

JuL
12,000
510,661
167,585
28,507
47,000
- 8,000

773,753

170,600
148,899
26,400
712
31,091
26,050
20,000
16,000
296,705
82,000
21,000
33,000
211,615
350,000

1,434,075

{660,322)

ACTUAL

Hi
7828
597,856
183,993
43,970
74,086
3,270
{5,078
Fr
0%, 088

127,977
53,472
12,475

53

AUG
$ 6,000
$ 510,661
$ 175,565
$ 37418
$ 40,000
$ 8,000
S -

$ -

5 177,842
$ 170,600
$ 143301
$ 24,000
s -

H

$ 31,091
5 -

$ -

s -

B

s -

$ -

$

3 -

$

$

$ 368,991
$ 408,651

PROIECTED
AUG

s -

s -

B

$

$

$ -
k3 -

$ -

s -

s -

3 -

$

s

S

$

$ -

$

$

s

B

$

$

k3 -

$

$

$

$

s -

$ -

TSRV VA7 AT ARV STy

R R R R R R RV ST PP TSRV ART

$

SEP
3,664
297,886
119,704
24,944
25,770
6,000

477,967

153,012
116,432
16,800

31,091

317,335

160,632

PROJECTED

B Y A T Y SR TRy

VB BBBBOLBNBDNN BN

SEP

W BN N W

VBB DOBVLBRN NN UL VN

$

ocT

191,498
87,783
17,817
20,000

4,000

321,098

133,666
66,053
10,800

241,609

79,488

PROJECTED

DR Y T RS VAV Y

VA VBB BBABLNYL BB ND e N

1

ocr

NoV
s -
5 63,833
$ 31921
$ 7,127
$ 10,000
5 2,500
s -
s -
$ 115,380
5 123,113
3 59,336
$ 4,300
s -
$ 7,000
$ 31,09
$
$
$
$
K 2
$
$
$
s -
$
$ 225340
$ [109,959)
PROJECTED
Nov
s =
$
$
$
s -
3 -
$
s -
$
s -
$
B
s
$
$
$
H
$
H
$
$
5 -
$
$
$
$
s
$
H -

35,039

112,561
40,303
6,000
9,000
31,091

198,955

$ (163,515}

PROJECTED
DEC

WS A D N s

WA DB A D BN 0 e e

35,427

$ 116,078
$ 40,303
$ -

$ -

$ 9,000
$ 31,091
s -

B

$

s

H

$

$

$ -

$

s -

$ 196472
$  (161,045)

PROJECTED
1AN

$

$

S

$

S

$

S

$

s -

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

s -

$

s

s

$

$ -

$

$

$

H

$

$ -

WD e

B Y Y T Y T T

B T Ty S YR T 7 Ny Ay N a7

13

235,437

87,938
50,379

9,000
31,091

178,408

57,029

PROJECTED

FEB

119,596
73,487

9,000
31,091

VN BB VNN VBB

239,174

§ 202,184

PROJECTED
MAR

LY YT A Y Y Y A R

VDN AL DAL D D W A A

B T T RV R RN DT Spr AP APY AR 7S

$

GV B B

VB LLBLARLAELY VYNV BN

APR
324,963
63,833
31,921
14,254
25,000
2,000

461,970

130,148
118,671
40,800

7,000
31,091

322,710

134,260

PROJECTED

APR

LR R RV AT TR S

B Y Y Y R RV T SRV AT AT AT SNV

$

R T T Y A7 AT SR T VY Y

BTy A RV T AR ART ARy Y NRT SRV SR SRV SRR

MAY
156,464
127,665

63,842
16,035
30,000

6,000
72,517

472,523

167,082
123,149
55,200

31,091

376,522

96,001

PROJECTED

MAY

LR Y Y T Ty

VB BDBBNNNDGBYL Y GOD NN

$

Y SR ST AR AT SRT SE7 AR AR T 7Y

B Y Y LR LRV VRV AR ARV ART SET N7 Y

JuN
38514
255,330
95,763
19,599
45,000
7,000

461,206

274,366
133,225
55,200

31,091

493,882

(32,676)

PROJECTED

JUN

WA D B Bt

B Y R R R RV R RV T IRT NPT ARV ART S 7Y

$

B R R R R L]

B A R TET AR APy NPT AR ARTY

TOTALS
1,203,566
2,127,754

798,024
178,171
273,770
45,000
72,517

4,698,802

1,758,758
1,119,538
240,000
712
50,000
373,082
26,050
20,000
16,000
296,705
82,000
21,000
33,000
211,619
350,000

4,598,474

100,328

TOTALS
7,821
597,856
189,993
41,370
74,086

3,270
(9,078)
469
905,788

127,977
53,472
12,475

53

23,705
1,308
11,324

296,705
70,387

597,404

308,383



Irrigation Water Source and Supply Project

The Captains Golf Course is including the replacement of the existing Irrigation System
in our Capital Plan. A critical component of that System is the Water Source and Supply.
The existing Source and Supply dates back to the original course, 1985, and is prone to
regular flooding at even modest storm events. This flooding puts the existing systems at
risk, as well as the golf courses, which are dependent on the irrigation system.

Because of the age and vulnerability of the existing irrigation water source and supply,
the Golf Course needs to prepare a Request for proposal for a Professional Engineering
Firm to evaluate the existing components, determine which of those could be utilized
the new system, and what improvements and new facilities need got be designed and
built to supply the eventual irrigation system with a reliable source and supply of water.
The Course is planning on a design of the source and supply that will have a useful of the
system of 40 years. Because of that, the adequacy of the water source/supply, which is
the heart of the system is most critical.

The new system, both source/supply and irrigation will be designed and built to allow
the Operations Staff to maintain the high-quality course that we have come to expect at
Captains, while offering a high degree of reliability and efficiencies of operations.

The new system will be designed to be in strict compliance with the DEP water
withdrawal permit, and to shorten the daily irrigation times to the extent practicable,
and also eliminate the issue of pump station flooding.

Looking at the useful life we would like to achieve, and the fact that the water
source/supply is the single most important part of the system, the Golf Course feels the
necessity of this Study to be done in a thorough and timely manner prior to the
irrigation system is critical.

It is anticipated that this Study will cost in the neighborhood of $100,000 and take up to
a year to complete. With the Study in hand, the Golf Course could then design the
recommended action in the Study, and finally bid and construct the Water
Source/Supply Improvements.

The Source/Supply Improvement Project Construction Cost is expected to be in the
$2,000,000 range, and the project Design, Bid, and Construction could take 2-3 years to
complete.

During the construction of this Project, the Irrigation System could be bid and built. The
current Irrigation Project is budgeted at $6,000,000 and would take 2 years to complete.



N
Waews

\
NonEWs, %,

\4

%y

o

LT
Wiow N iy,

c' oy .T,.uﬂ?’éo
rE Onpomﬁo.,
U 19 130

Ut

W

BREWSYYR

TOWN OF BREWSTER
Brewster, Massachusetts 02631
(508) 896-3701

GOLF COMMISSION
Minutes of July 11th, 2023

Commissioners Present: Anne O’Connell (Chair), Andrea Johnson (Vice-Chair), Rob David, John
Kissida, Wyn Morton, and Jay Paggi.

Others Present: Jay Packett (Director of Operations), Colin Walsh (Superintendent), Rob Harris
(CCMGA).

THIS MEETING WAS VIDEO RECORDED. The meeting may be viewed at:
https://reflect-brewster-ma.cablecast.tv/CablecastPublicSite/show/75957site=1

Jay Packett read the meeting participation statement and called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.
Declaration of a Quorum — There were 6 golf commissioners present declaring a quorum.

Commission Reorganization: Andrea Johnson was nominated as the next Chair and John Kissida was
nominated as the Vice-Chair position. Both nominations were approved by rollcall.

Public Comment: Andrea Johnson expressed gratitude for Anne O’Connell’s leadership and
contributions to the commission. A quote from Peter Lombardi (Town Administrator) praised Anne's
diligence, communication skills, and institutional knowledge. John Kissida, representing the Select
Board, thanked Anne for her leadership and handling challenges with wisdom, grace, and humor. Anne
O’Connell expressed her appreciation for the kind words. The meeting moved on to public comments,
noting no participants in the waiting room. Jay Packett welcomed Jay Paggi to the Golf Commission

Superintendent’s Report: Colin Walsh began by discussing the hot weather and turf grass diseases. He
mentioned the use of the hydration stations for player hydration. He updated the Golf Commission about
pump house issues, stating one pump was damaged by lightning and required repairs, leaving them with a
single pump for 3 to 6 weeks. He mentioned using sprinklers early in the evenings and shared a cost
estimate range of $11,000 to $15,000 for repairs. He talked about the preliminary phase of the
maintenance building rehabilitation and meeting with Kurt Raber for planning. Colin Walsh noted a pump
house protection study meeting, detailing options to mitigate flooding, including moving the pump house.
He reported on aerating greens for root preservation and the minimal impact on conditions. Colin Walsh
spoke about personnel shortages and the positive work environment with a dedicated team of employees.

Update on 1st Tee area planting project: John Kissida provided an update on the collaboration with



Friends of Captains for the project. They received a positive response from The Friends after outlining
their approach and discussing funding and labor involvement. The project aims to enhance areas around
the starter shack and create an appealing entrance. Colin Walsh mentioned using native plantings,
perennials, and drip irrigation for sustainability and visual impact. John Kissida added that Friends’
assistance will extend to revamping the clubhouse area and removing old shrubs for a better arrival
experience. This partnership allows for enhancements beyond the budget's scope, with hopes to allocate
funds from the enhancements budget.

Director’s Report: Jay Packett provided the financial update, covering several topics as follows:

1. Budget Status: The balance of over $100,000 decreased due to unexpected expenses, mainly rising fuel
and maintenance costs.

2. Comparison Reports (June 2023 vs. June 2022): Revenue was up by $53,000 due to higher membership
and greens fees, and increased riding cart usage.

3. Year-to-Date Revenue (Calendar Year 2023): Membership fees rose by $55,000, greens fees by
$70,000, riding cart fees by $47,000, and miscellaneous income by $86,000, making a total increase of
about $259,000.

4, Year-to-Date Revenue (Fiscal Year 2023): There was an overall revenue increase of $396,000 due to
higher membership and greens fees, and increased riding cart fees.

5. Projection for Retained Earnings: Retained earnings were projected to be slightly over a million
dollars, $670,000 more than initially projected for FY 23.

6. Play Totals (June 2023): June 2023 was the second greatest number of rounds played in a June.

7. Play Totals (Calendar Year 2023): Over 34,000 rounds were played, more than 2500 rounds compared
to the same period in 2022.

8. Member Play Percentage: Member play percentage was 49% in June, reflecting strong member
participation.

9. Capital Spending (FY 2022 and 2023): Capital spending included ongoing bills and future purchases,
like mowers and spray rigs, with recent additions such as a backhoe attachment. A few bills were not
properly categorized yet, leading to changes in the presented figures for the next update. Jay Packett
concluded by welcoming questions.

Course Operations Questions and Concerns: Rob David sought clarification on the fiscal page
regarding solar revenue. Jay Packett confirmed that the solar revenue is recurring, and last year's revenue
was around $72,005. Solar revenue was subject to a 2% escalator due to the absence of an energy
manager.

Anne O'Connell expressed concern about the FY 24 budget and the potential for a similar or worse
situation in FY 25. Jay Packett acknowledged the need for wiser spending and explained that unforeseen
expenses, such as plumbing issues and fuel costs, played a significant role. He emphasized the challenges
of managing and sourcing parts for equipment maintenance. Anne O’Connell pointed out that the budget
process needed consideration for infrastructure aging. Colin Walsh suggested creating a specific line item
for pump station expenses, considering their recurrent issues. The discussion also touched on the effects
of lightning strikes and the possibility of improving grounding. Colin Walsh shared insights into the
frequent maintenance and repairs of the pump station over the years

Review and Discussion on Membership Numbers: Jay Packett provided an update on membership
statistics. Jay Packett noted there are currently 1150 members, which is 13 more than the same time in
2022. The increase in play has led to some members getting later tee times than desired, especially on
popular days like Mondays. In June, member play accounted for 49% of all play, which is a good
percentage. The introduction of the additional 25 non-resident players hasn't significantly impacted play,
and Jay Packett is comfortable with the current membership count. He anticipates potentially gaining a
few more members and will consider offering offseason memberships in the future. Discussions on this

2



topic are expected to continue more in the future.

Anne O'Connell mentioned that last year, 19 people joined between the current date and the end of the
calendar year. She questioned if the goal of 25 non-resident members has been fulfilled with the current
count of 24. She believes the current membership count is sufficient and that they shouldn't open to more
non-resident members. Jay Packett expressed comfort with the current membership count and noted that
while some members may get shut out of their preferred tee times, most understand the situation. The
peak tee time requests are between 7:00 and 10:30 AM. He advised members to consider wider tee time
windows for better chances.

Strategic Planning Updates (Commission) John Kissida provided updates on 1st Tee planting and
discussed the importance of addressing the pump station's vulnerability due to global warming and
increased storms. He emphasized the need for a comprehensive solution considering the future irrigation
system and the fact that short-term fixes won't suffice. He suggested integrating the pump station upgrade
with the irrigation project. He also mentioned the significance of the maintenance building. He stressed
that these projects are substantial and likely to be budget-intensive due to rising costs and competition for
contractors. The discussion revolved around the challenges of pump station repair and renovation, with
Colin Walsh acknowledging the complexities involved. The talk also touched upon the need to mitigate
the ongoing pump station issues and considerations for potential new well drilling. Overall, the focus was
on addressing long-term solutions for critical infrastructure needs. The conversation then shifted to
signage updates, with Jay Packett mentioning receiving mock-ups for signage but awaiting pricing details.
They plan to finalize the verbiage and move forward soon.

Questions and Comments from Associations and Liaisons: Rob Harris from the CCMGA reported
having 166 members, an all-time high. They secure the first two hours of tee times on Wednesdays,
accommodating 64 players. They had 84 members sign up recently, leading to 20 cuts. They manage cuts
through a list, aiming to cut everyone once. Due to demand, cuts might extend through July. A survey of
266 members revealed that those playing more frequently face more shutouts, with those playing four
days a week experiencing the most. Future discussions on tee time allocation are anticipated.

Review and Approve Minutes:
6/13 - Approved with amendments.
6/27 - Approved with amendments.

Future Agenda Items and Meetings: Anne O'Connell mentioned her absence for the next meeting and
noted that Jay Packett will also be unavailable for the first meeting in August. A suggestion was made to
potentially reschedule the July 25th meeting or consider having the August meeting on a different date to
accommodate these conflicts. The idea of shifting the meeting date to the fourth Tuesday of August was
proposed, as it seemed to be a more feasible option. John Kissida mentioned that last year, the
commission only met once in August. The topic of the business manager job description being advertised
was also touched upon, with Jay Packett mentioning that he will share the description once it becomes

public.
Matters not anticipated by the Chair: None

A motion to adjourn was made - Motion was approved and the meeting was adjourned.



